
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES 

The Secretary, United States 
Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, on behalf of the Fair 
Housing Rights Center in 
Southeastern Pennsylvania, 

ALJ No. 
Charging Party, 

v. 	 FHEO No. 03-11-0224-8 

Nevin Hill Realty Corporation and : 
Fran Stepnowski, 

Respondents 

CHARGE OF DISCRIMINATION 

• 	JURISDICTION 

The Fair Housing Rights Center in Southeastern Pennsylvania ("Complainant") 
submitted a timely complaint with the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development ("HUD") on or about April 4, 2011, alleging that Nevin Hill Realty 
Corporation and Hill Construction Corporation committed discriminatory housing 
practices against families with children in violation of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. ti 
3601-19 (the "Act"). The final amended complaint. which l\ 	tiled on or about 
`.eptertiller 7..2.011_ Ido!!itied Nevin Hill Rc.qiltv ("orporation. WIlliarn 1. tliII. an d Fr- ;in  

I ,. 	- 	 non-pr 0;i 

	

rhe 1 - lur tfot:-;1 	oqual ()prortunit% 1)11-;:u - or t,, r 	 )ir,,2 t: 

	

C.CLTet -,i1 \ 	 {)ctermination ( , I 	Peason:thle 
or :la:, 	tt1,1 	 oei.le‘e thit 



ievi 

\ 	:CH !I file• 	 ( 

■ c , rofiCI1I 	ii II R calt 	'orrtiratiol nHorc , 	t'n)rn 

Nevin Hill Realty Corporation and Fran Stepnowski ("Respondents") have committed 
discriminatory housing practices and, therefore, has issued a Determination of 
Reasonable Cause as to Respondents and has authorized the issuance of this Charge. 

SUMMARY OF THE ALLEGATIONS IN SUPPORT OF THIS CHARGE 

Based on HUD's investigation of the allegations contained in the aforementioned 
complaint and as set forth in the aforementioned Determination of Reasonable Cause, 
Respondents Nevin Hill Realty Corporation and Fran Stepnowski are charged with 
discriminating based on familial status in violation of 42 U.S.C. §§ 3604(a) and (c). 

A. Statutory and Regulatory Provisions 

It is unlawful to refuse to rent or otherwise make unavailable or deny a 
dwelling to any person because of familial status. 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a); 24 
C.F.R. §§ 100.60(a) and (b)(2) (2011). 

2. It is unlawful to make statements or publish advertisements with respect to the 
rental of a dwelling that indicate any preference, limitation or discrimination 
based on familial status, or an intention to make any such preference, 
limitation or discrimination. 42 U.S.C. § 3604(c); 24 C.F.R. §§ 100.75(a), 
(c)(1) and (2) (2011). 

"Familial status" means one or more individuals under the age of eighteen 
(18) being domiciled with a parent or legal guardian. 42 U.S.C. § 3602(k); 24 
C.F.R. § 100.20 (2011). 

B. Parties and Properties 

. At all times pertinent to this Charge, Complainant Fair Housing Rights Center 
in Southeastern Pennsylvania is a private. imn-protit organization working to 
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prospective tenants, shows apartments to prospective tenants, and posts 
advertisements for Respondent Nevin Hill Realty Corporation's rental 
properties. 

C. Factual Allegations 

On September 1, 2010, Respondent Fran Stepnowski posted an advertisement 
on cruigslist. corn for an apartment at the subject property. The advertisement 
contained the discriminatory language - IT IS NOT RECOMMENDED FOR 
PRE-SCHOOL AGE CHILDREN (exterior stairs are open steel)" (emphasis 
in original). 

Upon viewing this advertisement, Complainant prepared a testing campaign 
for the subject property with two match-paired tests. 

On September 3, 2010, Tester #1 called the subject property posing as a 
mother living with her two-year-old child. She spoke with Respondent Fran 
Stepnowski. Respondent Stepnowski, upon hearing that the tester had a 
young child, said that she knew that she was not supposed to discriminate, but 
that due to the steel staircases in the back of duplex, the apartment was "not 
recommended for children as young as two." Respondent Stepnowski then 
to 	ininated the phone call. 

4. On September 3, 2010, Tester #2 spoke to Respondent Stepnowski and 
explained that she was seeking housing for herself and her husband. 
Respondent Stepnowski suggested that the tester drive by the property and 
call back if she was interested in seeing the available unit. On September 8, 
2010, Tester #2 visited the subject property. Respondent Stepnowski showed 
her the second-floor apartment and told her to call if she wanted to apply to 
rent the unit. 
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D. Fair Housing Act Violations 

By refusinii to provide a tester with a pre-school age child information about the 
subject property or an opportunity to see or apply for the subject property, 
RespondentsI max a dv, elling unavailable to her in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 
3604(a) and 24 C.F.R. §§ 100.60(a) and (b)(2) (2011). 

2. By publishing advertisements which contained the language "IT IS NOT 
RECOMMENDED FOR PRE-SCHOOL AGE CHILDREN (exterior stairs are 
open steel)", and by making the oral statement that the second-floor apartment 
was "not recommended for children as young as two," Respondents indicated a 
preference against renting to families with children in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 
3604(c) and 24 C.F.R. §§ 100.75(a), (c)(1) and (2). 

III. CONCLUSION 

WHEREFORE, the Secretary of HUD, through the Office of Regional Counsel 
for the Philadelphia Regional Office, and pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3610(g)(2)(A), hereby 
charges Respondents with engaging in discriminatory housing practices in violation of 42 
U.S.C. §§ 3604(a) and (c), and prays that an order be issued that: 

Declares that Respondents' discriminatory housing practices, as set forth 
above, violate the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601-19 and its 
implementing regulations; 

2. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3612(g)(3), enjoins Respondents and all other persons 
in active concert or participation with them, from discriminating against any 
person based on familial status in any aspect of a rental transaction; 

Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3612(g)(3) and 24 C.F.R. § 180.671(aX1), assesses a 
civil penalty against each Respondent for each violation of the Act; 

4. Pursuant to 42 1 • S.(' .`,` 1 612( ') 
	:iwards such 

4 



i -hard A. M these 
Associate Regional Counsel for Civil Rights 

and Procurement 

SHERYL . JOHNSON 
egional Counsel 

Respectfully submitted, 

1Mlarfet R. 
Attorney-Advisor 

U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
Office of the Regional Counsel 
The Wanamaker Building 
100 Penn Square East 
Philadelphia, PA 19107-3380 
Telephone: (215) 430-6653 
Fax: (215) 656-3446 
TTY: (2 5)6,  6-3450 
Date: 7 k 


